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WEST NECK PRESERVE 

 

   

Property Description 

The Town acquired the 7.7-acre property with CPF funds in 2020 
to maintain the property as passive parkland for freshwater 
recharge to the fragile West Neck Watershed. It consists 
principally of an open field with some tall deciduous trees and a 
small evergreen "farm" in the center. The property is bounded on 
the east and south by West Neck Road, on the west by Nostrand 
Parkway and on the north by woodlands. The property was in the Sturgis-O’Connor family for four 
generations before they sold it to the Town.  

Access 

Visitors may walk onto the property from West Neck Road or Nostrand Parkway. Visitors with vehicles 
are encouraged to use the West Neck Road entrance and park in the designated area. 

Prior Owners/History 

The property was part of West Neck Farm, an agricultural partnership established in the mid-1730s that 
owned the west side of the Island from the Heights to Shell Beach. West Neck Farm had about 23 partners, 
a number from Southold, in 1739. Upon its partition in 1806, it had eleven partners, mostly Island people; 
interests had been transferred by sale and inheritance. It was managed as a stock farm; wood was sold, flax 
and wheat raised and pasture hired out for livestock both winter and summer. Upon the 1806 partition of 
the Farm, the 398.5-acre parcel allocated to Samuel B. Nicoll (owner of Sachem’s Neck (Mashomack)) 
contained the property, and that parcel passed to his son Richard F. Nicoll, then to Richard’s daughter 
Charity Antoinette Nicoll Gavitt by 1863 and then to others (see Two Maps section). 
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John L. Nostrand acquired that 
parcel in 1885 and established in 
1888 his 230-villa West Neck Park 
subdivision running from Rocky 
Point Avenue to Crab Creek. The 
property consists of eight lots in 
that subdivision (Lots 35-42; 4 
Nostrand Parkway), on the 
northwest corner of Park Place 
(now West Neck Road) and 
Nostrand Parkway. In 1894 Joseph 
A. Hall acquired Lot 39. Mr. 
Nostrand died in 1900 and the other 
seven lots passed with other 
property to his son Peter E. 
Nostrand. 

 

In 1910 Stephen P. Sturges acquired Lot 39 from Joseph Hall and Lots 35-38 and 40-42 from Peter 
Nostrand. The eight lots continued in four generations of the Sturgis-O’Connor family until the 2020 when 
they sold them to the Town.  

 

 

 

Stephen Sturges also acquired Lots 10 and 11 (5 Nostrand Parkway) across the road and on the bay in 1903. 
He expanded the existing mansion. It was called “Cherry Tree Farm.” Early on, they established a lane 
along thenorthwest side of the property with an allée of trees leading directly from West Neck Road (near 
the turn-off to Worthy Road) to their mansion on the bay. One can just reflect on the image presented as 
they drove through the passageway of trees to the entrance of the mansion. 
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A cottage was built on the property to serve staff and a caretaker; and the property was used to support 
other needs of the family, probably vegetables, flowers and poultry. A 1929 aerial photograph shows open 
fields on the property and nearby. These areas were probably actively farmed in potatoes, lima beans, etc., 
up to the hurricanes of 1954 and 1955 that decimated the lima bean fields and effectively ended wide scale 
farming on the Island. Since then, the area was mostly unused. The caretaker lived in the cottage until 2016 
despite only a wood-burning stove for heat. It was he who planted what was to be an evergreen farm. 

 

 

Stories 

Cherry Tree Farm was the summer base for four generations of the Sturges-O’Connor family from 1903 
to 2020. During that period, they were active in Island affairs, including particularly sailing both as young 
people and adults.  

Sandra O’Connor and Ed Hydeman were the last family members to live on the Farm.  
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On the 1888 Nostrand subdivision map, West 
Neck Road ended at the turnoff into 
Westmoreland at Worthy Road, and a road 
labeled “Park Place” continued across 
Nostrand Parkway to the bay. The 1909 and 
1915 Belcher-Hyde maps and later continued 
this use. In 1974 interest developed in 
changing the name to “Bootlegger’s Alley” 
in celebration of the historical use of the area 
during prohibition. In 1975, after petitions 
and a hearing, the Town Board changed the 
name of “Park Place,” the road from 
Nostrand Parkway to the bay, to 
“Bootlegger’s Alley.” However, that left the 
portion of Park Place between Nostrand 
Parkway and Worthy Road awkwardly 
unchanged. At some point the highway 
people simply changed the street sign at the 
intersection with Nostrand Parkway from 
“Park Place” to “West Neck Road,” the map 
makers followed - and “Park Place” was no 
more. 

 

      

Nostrand Orchard logo (SIHS 1973_87               West Neck Park brochure (SIHS 2015_8)—see below 
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